
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 8 June 2020. 
 01476 406080

Karen Bradford, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Tuesday, 16 June 2020 at 10.00 am
This meeting will be held by remote conferencing using 

Skype for Business

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Judy Stevens (Chairman)
Councillor Hilary Westropp (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth, Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor Virginia Moran, 
Councillor Mrs Judy Smith and Councillor Jill Thomas

Invited 
Cabinet 

Members

Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy

Agenda
Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar.

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link:

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 16 June 2020

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 
before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 
desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser.

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 
meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 
Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 
they would like to speak.

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk.

Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/FNCZ0C59
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


1.  Comments from Members of the Public
To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion

2.  Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence

3.  Disclosure of Interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4.  Action Notes from the meeting held on 11 February 2020 (Pages 3 - 11)

5.  Updates from the previous meeting (Page 13)

6.  Markets Update
A verbal update on markets, particularly with reference to support throughout 
the Covid-19 pandemic

(Verbal Report)

7.  Digital Engagement in Response to Covid-19
Report detailing work on digital engagement with the arts throughout the Covid-
19 pandemic

(Pages 15 - 19)

8.  2020/21 Committee Work Programme
To populate the draft Work Programme for the Committee for the 2020/21 
municipal year

(Pages 21 - 31)

9.  Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances decides is urgent



Meeting of the
Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee
Tuesday, 11 February 2020, 5.30 pm

Committee Members present

Councillor Judy Stevens (Chairman)
Councillor Hilary Westropp (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Paul Fellows

Councillor Virginia Moran
Councillor Mrs Judy Smith
Councillor Jill Thomas

Cabinet Members

Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy

Officers

Interim Strategic Director, Growth (Harry Rai)
Corporate Operations Lead (Paul Stokes)
Leisure and Events Supervisor (Sharon Haythorn)
CEO, InvestSK (Steve Bowyer)
Head of Arts, InvestSK (Michael Cross)
Cultural Services Team Leader (Graham Burley)
Scrutiny Officer (Zena West)
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page)

28. Comments from Members of the Public

A number of members of the public and local Councillors wished to make 
statements regarding the Bourne CiCLE festival.

Those making comments expressed their frustration that a formal decision 
had not yet been reached as to whether the Bourne CiCLE festival would be 
held again in 2020. Reference was made to a social media post which had 
stated that the festival would not be going ahead and the subsequent 
statement from the Council informing residents that a decision had not been 
finalised. 

3

Agenda Item 4



One member of the public highlighted the period of time that had lapsed since 
discussions had first begun regarding the potential to hold another CiCLE 
festival in 2020 and noted that there would not be sufficient time for the 
organisation of the festival within the current year. Others referred to the plans 
identified previously by InvestSK that the festival was being planned for three 
consecutive years to allow for publicity surrounding the event to grow. 
Comments made reference to assurances that the festival had potential to 
acquire international status and gain sponsorship support by its third year. 
The speakers expressed how successful they felt the event in 2019 had been 
and how pleased the local community had been to have a specific event 
organised for Bourne and the surrounding villages. A Councillor also referred 
to the relationship between the cycling event and the Council’s recent 
declaration of a climate emergency; the environmental impact of encouraging 
interest in cycling within the district was also thought to be beneficial. Other 
comments referred to the effort that had been put in to support the festival. It 
was felt that direct answers were needed as to whether the festival would be 
going ahead in 2020, or if there were plans to hold the festival again in 
subsequent years. 

The members of the public were thanked for sharing their comments. The 
Chair explained that an update regarding the Committee’s consideration of the 
Bourne CiCLE festival would be given during the ‘updates from the previous 
meeting’ item.   

29. Apologies

No apologies for absence had been received. 

30. Disclosure of Interests

No interests were disclosed.

31. Action Notes from the meeting held on 5 November 2019

The action notes of the meeting held on 5 November 2019 were noted and 
agreed as a correct record. 

32. Updates from the previous meeting

The Chair gave an update regarding the Committee’s consideration of the 
future of the Bourne CiCLE festival. At its meeting on 5 November 2019, the 
festival had been considered during the ‘overview of festivals’ item, alongside 
the Stamford Georgian festival. As a full report had not been submitted for the 
Committee to consider, it was decided that a round table discussion would be 
held separately to discuss the feasibility of the Bourne CiCLE festival moving 
forward. This discussion was held as a workshop on 25 November 2019 and 
was open for all interested Members to attend. 

4



The Committee delegated authority to allow members of the Committee in 
attendance at the workshop to make a recommendation directly to Cabinet 
regarding the future of the festival. A recommendation was put to Cabinet 
supporting the CiCLE Festival being held in 2020, subject to stronger 
budgetary controls and greater community and business involvement. The 
Committee had therefore discharged its involvement and the item had been 
removed from the Work Programme. 

The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy was asked if she would 
like to respond to the earlier comments from members of the public regarding 
the festival. She informed the Committee that the governance process 
regarding the future of the festival had not yet been completed. It was 
explained that timescales may not allow for the festival to be held in 2020, but 
that there was a commitment to look after the district’s residents and tax 
payers. 

A member of the Committee asked why the potential 2020 date for the festival 
had changed, noting that this had created a challenge in allowing sufficient 
time for the organisation of the event. The Corporate Operations Lead 
confirmed that he had attended a meeting with British Cycling along with the 
Head of Visitor Economy from InvestSK. A date in August had been 
unavailable due to other events in the cycling calendar and the preferred date 
to hold the festival had been in May. 

Members asked for further clarification as to whether a decision had formally 
been made that the festival would not go ahead in 2020, and where this 
decision had taken place. The Interim Strategic Director, Growth noted the 
previous comments that the festival had been a valued event. He confirmed 
that a recommendation had been brought to Cabinet for its consideration and 
highlighted the challenges of the current economic climate, which called for 
difficult decisions to be made for the Council to achieve a balanced budget. 
He assured the Committee that the Council remained committed to supporting 
festivals where possible in the district and acknowledged the comments from 
members of the public that the residents of Bourne valued having an event 
held in their area. Members were informed that although time constraints 
would likely not allow for the event to be held in 2020, the event still held 
potential for the future. 

The Chair referred to her earlier statement regarding the Committee’s 
recommendation to Cabinet with reference to the festival and requested a 
written statement in response to the recommendation.

Recommendation

 Cabinet to provide the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee with a formal written response as to the 
status of the Bourne CiCLE Festival, and a response to its 
recommendation made to the December 2019 meeting of Cabinet: 

5



“To support the CiCLE Festival being held in 2020, subject to 
stronger budgetary controls and greater community and business 
involvement”.

33. Markets in South Kesteven

The Corporate Operations Lead gave a presentation outlining the current 
provision for markets in South Kesteven and the potential options for 
extending them. He wished to acknowledge the contribution of the Head of 
Town Centres who had been responsible for markets over the last eighteen 
months. The presentation highlighted the benefits and challenges that markets 
presented, both to traders and the hosting authority. Reference was made to 
adverse weather conditions that had affected the success of the markets, as 
well as a change in customer expectations. 

Stamford was reported as a particularly successful market which was meeting 
its own costs and had a waiting list of stall holders wanting to trade. Grantham 
and Bourne markets were less stable, with diminishing numbers in recent 
years. Markets tended to be most successful when they coincided with other 
community events. The international food market in Grantham had been 
successful and did not incur a cost to the Council as it was wholly managed by 
the organisers.

Background information was given regarding the Deepings market and the 
decision that had been made to close it for the winter period. A market with 
local organisers was run independently on a Wednesday. As a Council 
managed market had been requested, this had been facilitated by way of an 
18 month Saturday road closure which was valid until the end of September 
2020. Although the Deepings market had seen some successful moments 
initially, numbers had dwindled after the discounted fee period had ended; this 
had been exacerbated by ongoing bad weather conditions. The decision to 
suspend the market had been made to allow time to consider its feasibility 
moving forward. 

The Committee was given information regarding the potential options for a 
Sunday market in Bourne. It was explained that a road closure to allow for the 
market to be held in the town centre would create challenges and incur 
significant costs. Stalls would also need to be transported from Stamford; this 
would incur additional staffing costs. A market in the Corn Exchange car park 
would be less of a financial risk, as no road closures would be needed and 
pop-up stalls could be used. However, either option for a Sunday market in 
Bourne would need to be supported by trader interest and customer demand 
for it to be a viable provision. 

Members were asked if they had any comments or questions arising from the 
presentation in relation to a potential Sunday market in Bourne:

6



 One Member commented that when the idea for a Sunday market in 
Bourne was first put forward, it had been with a specialist type in mind 
to encourage new traders to join the market. He felt that it would be 
beneficial to trial the idea in the Corn Exchange car park once a month 
over the warmer months to establish its viability as a permanent option.

 Other members of the Committee welcomed the idea of a Sunday 
market in Bourne and felt that trialling the idea to coincide with other 
events over the summer months would help to publicise the launch. 
Potential ideas for the market theme included specialist foods, crafts or 
antiques.  

Action Points

 Bourne Ward Councillors to meet with the Corporate Operations 
Lead with a view to putting ideas together for a trial run of a 
Bourne Sunday market, to coincide with other events in the town.

 The market to be held in a location that does not require road 
closures or traffic management. 

 The outcome of the meeting between Bourne Ward Councillors 
and the Corporate Operations Lead to be reported to the next 
meeting of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.  

 
Members were asked if they had any comments or questions arising from the 
presentation in relation to the Deepings market:

 A member of the Committee wished to express how keen they were for 
the Deepings market to be reintroduced in the spring. It was felt that the 
removal of the cash machine from the vicinity had impacted the level of 
customer spending at the market, particularly as most of the traders 
accepted cash-only payments. Reference was made to an idea the 
Member had put forward previously to offer empty stalls to local 
crafters; it was thought that this initiative could help with attendance.

 The Chief Executive of InvestSK referred to some work that had begun 
previously with regard to establishing which factors drove the success 
of Stamford market and if lessons could be learned to improve the 
performance of markets in other areas of the district. It was suggested 
that continuing this work could support the Council in improving the 
performance of markets.

 Members discussed the potential regularity of the market, if re-
introduced. Although there was a keenness from local Members to hold 
the market weekly to attract regular traders, the Committee also 
considered holding a monthly market as a starting point.

The Corporate Operations Lead responded to Members’ comments by 
suggesting that the Deepings market be re-introduced in the spring on a trial 
basis as a monthly farmers market with craft stalls to supplement this. He 

7



suggested that community leaders be approached to ask for support in 
leading the market alongside the Council. 

Action Point

 The Deepings Ward Councillors to meet with the Corporate 
Operations Lead to discuss the options for re-introducing the 
Deepings market, with a view to trialling the market as a monthly 
event during spring/summer 2020.

 The outcome of the meeting between Deepings Ward Councillors 
and the Corporate Operations Lead to be reported to the next 
meeting of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

34. Charles Worth Festival

The Head of Arts at InvestSK introduced the item outlining the potential for a 
Charles Worth festival to be held in Bourne. Referring to earlier comments that 
had been made with regard to the Bourne CiCLE festival, it was confirmed 
that this suggestion was not intended to replace the CiCLE festival, but that 
the idea had been put forward by a Bourne resident and developed by the 
Head of Arts to support the Council’s aim to develop the arts and cultural 
provision in the Bourne and Deepings areas. 

The theme of the festival had been developed as ‘Bourne by Design’. The 
idea took inspiration from Charles Worth and could be piloted over two or 
three days as a community-led event supported by Council funding. Potential 
events and venues were discussed, with the suggestion to concentrate the 
theme on fashion and design but also incorporate links with theatre and 
tv/cinema. 

The Committee was asked if it had any questions or comments regarding the 
presentation. Members commented that they felt the concept was worth 
exploring further and trialling. It was felt that the best way to develop the idea 
further would involve directly contacting Bourne stakeholders and community 
groups to include their input at an early stage. It was suggested that the 
Bourne Arts Trust could help with the event. 

The Chair referred to the Deepings Literary Festival as an example of how a 
local community could work together to organise and support sustainable 
events with a small budget; she emphasised the importance of this type of 
initiative as local authorities continued to face the financial challenges of 
reduced funding moving forward.  

Action Point

8



 Bourne Ward Councillors to meet with the Head of Arts to discuss 
options for holding a community-led ‘Bourne by Design’ festival in 
Autumn 2020.

 The outcome of the meeting between Bourne Ward Councillors 
and the Head of Arts to be reported to the next meeting of the 
Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

The Chair decided to change the order of proceedings to allow for 
consideration of agenda item 10 (Member Working Group for Leisure) before 
item 9 (Cultural Strategy). 

35. Member Working Group for Leisure

The Interim Strategic Director, Growth provided an update for the Committee 
regarding the Member Working Group for Leisure. Following the interest 
shown by Councillors, the Leader of the Council had decided to work with the 
Ward Members for each of the leisure centres in turn, to seek local input 
before any decisions were made regarding the future of the leisure provision. 
It was intended that after these meetings had been undertaken the options for 
the district would be brought back to the Committee. 

Action Point

The Committee to be updated on any outcomes from the meetings 
with local Members and the progress of the leisure centre review 
work.

36. Cultural Strategy

The Head of Arts at InvestSK gave an update on the progress of the Cultural 
Strategy. He explained that there had been a delay in the timing of the 
development of the document. Amendments following feedback from officers 
and Members were currently being incorporated within the draft strategy. 
When the amendments to the draft text had been completed, work would 
begin on the design of the document. The completed draft would then be 
shared with the residents and stakeholders who had engaged in the 
consultation process in 2019. Members requested that it also be circulated to 
the Committee electronically for feedback at this point, before its consideration 
at Cabinet. The Chair highlighted the importance of members of the 
Committee responding with any comments or suggested amendments when 
the document was circulated.

Action Point

 The Head of Arts to circulate the completed draft Cultural Strategy 
to the Committee electronically for feedback prior to its 
consideration by Cabinet.

9



37. Community Assets Toolkit - Stamford Arts Centre

The Cultural Services Team Leader gave an outline of the services provided 
by Stamford Arts Centre. The Arts Centre was spread over three buildings and 
hosted events ranging from small community group gatherings to cinema 
screenings and touring theatre productions. The art gallery, where the meeting 
was held, was highly sought after, with a four year waiting list of artists wishing 
to secure a space.

The current focus of the Arts Centre was working with families and children 
using Arts Council funding. An ‘Arts Around Town’ family day had been 
planned for the half term week, as well as events with nurseries throughout 
the year. 

The Committee enquired as to the demand for use of the building. It was 
confirmed that as there were limitations to capacity, it was often not available 
for all community groups. The building did not currently have a lift in place; this 
presented challenges for those wishing to make use of the upstairs space and 
meant that the building was not currently fully accessible. There were talks 
being undertaken with the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy 
regarding the feasibility of having a lift installed in the building. 

The Chair of the Committee noted the age of the building and asked how it 
was faring structurally. A condition survey of the building had been 
undertaken. There were some areas that needed attention, including a roof 
leak. Following works to rectify this, a plan would be put into place to ensure 
that the rest of the building was being adequately maintained. Emergency 
works were also being undertaken currently to repair a collapsed floor.

Action Point

 Members of the Committee to spread the word about the half term 
‘Arts Around Town’ family day.

Recommendation

 The Committee support the feasibility study into the proposed 
works for the building, including the installation of a lift and 
further maintenance works.

38. Work Programme

The Chair confirmed that the April meeting of the Committee would now be 
held at Grantham Museum rather than Easton Walled Gardens. The meeting 
would begin at 6.30pm. It was requested that the Markets item be re-visited at 
the April meeting to consider feedback from the discussions held with the 
Bourne and Deepings Ward Members and the Corporate Operations Lead, as 
well as the Bourne by Design  festival item following discussion between 

10



Bourne Ward Councillors and the Head of Arts at InvestSK. There would also 
be consideration of the response from the Cabinet regarding the Bourne 
CiCLE festival.  

39. Close of the meeting

The meeting closed at 19:32.

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Dear Cllr Judy Stevens – Chairman Culture OSC

At the Cabinet meeting of 18th February 2020 I agreed to provide a written response on the 
status of the Bourne CiCle  festival.

As Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy I am responsible for the consideration of 
events and festivals on behalf of the Cabinet. I do not make decisions in isolation.

SKDC is committed to delivering festivals and events across the district but must ensure they 
meet the needs of local communities as well as visitors, whilst offering value for money for 
council taxpayers. The assessment of value for money comes through the development of a 
detailed business case which assesses visitor numbers, spend in local shops and other social 
and economic benefits against the cost of staging the event - the cost to the taxpayers of 
South Kesteven.

The business case should also identify other funding streams and the extent to which the 
event is supported by the local residents and the business community.

The Council cannot wholly support the Bourne Cicle event, and I have not seen a proposition 
as to how Council money can be leveraged to support an event that has wider financial and 
community support. For these reasons, there is no budget allocation for Bourne Cicle, and the 
event is not going ahead this year

There is a review of all the festivals we support across the district, because as a council, we 
provide many services to our residents and businesses and quite rightly we should be 
reviewing how and where that money is spent.

The two major festivals we hold in the district are Gravity Fields in Grantham and Georgian 
Festival in Stamford, with support to the Deepings Literary Festival, all events held on a bi-
annual basis.  We are interested in supporting an event at Bourne, however, as I have 
mentioned previously it does need to be inclusive and benefit the wider residents, business 
communities and demonstrate value for money.

The Council will only support events that have a sound business case and where a positive 
social and economic impact can be demonstrated. This is how we ensure that taxpayers’ 
money is used properly.

While I cannot say that the Bourne Cicle festival will return in 2021. What I can say is that I 
would welcome the submission of a sound business case for any event so that it can be 
considered through the right processes at the Council. The business case needs to 
demonstrate the economic and social benefit of staging the event, as well as the funding 
sought from the Council and from other stakeholders and sponsors.  This business case, and 
the requested budget, can then form one of the considerations that the Council must take into 
account in setting its budget, for the whole district, for 2021/2022.

Best regards

Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew
Cabinet Member- Culture & Visitor Economy

13

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Culture and Visitor Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

16 June 2020

Report of: Councillor Rosemary Trollope-
Bellew
Cabinet Member for Culture and 
Visitor Economy

        

Digital Engagement in Response to Covid-19
A report highlighting the work of the Cultural Services team in response to the pandemic.

Report Author

Michael Cross, Head of Arts

01476 406129

michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Growth Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Paul Stokes, Corporate Operations Lead 31 May 2020

Approved by: Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth 1 June 2020

Signed off by: Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet 
Member for Culture and Visitor Economy 3 June 2020

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. That the committee considers the work of Cultural Services team in respect of 
developing an online programme during the period of lockdown and offers advice 
on:
i) how the team might extend the programme
ii) engaging more widely with individuals and organisations across the district 

to promote an online offer, supporting wellbeing and other cultural initiatives
developing a regular digital platform for cultural events and activities    

15

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 South Kesteven District Council’s arts venues in Stamford and Grantham have been 

closed since 23 March 2020.

1.2 The Coronavirus (covid-19) pandemic has created great uncertainty for the cultural sector 
globally and venues across the UK are working on a series of scenarios for how business 
might be resumed when restrictions are eased. 

1.3 It is important to ensure the venues remain connected to patrons and the wider cultural 
community during the period of closure. 

1.4 Local creative practitioners, regional and national organisations have been keen to 
promote and profile their work to both established and new audiences during the 
lockdown. 

1.5 A regular Project Team (of seven staff) meets weekly, to deliver a fortnightly Arts. at 
home e-Newsletter providing arts and cultural activity links and information to residents 
and local practitioners, promoting their work and online services.

1.6 The e-Newsletter is issued to 14,000 patrons on the Arts Centres’ database, together with 
a network of local creative practitioners, Parish Council Clerks, and SKDC Members. 

1.7 In addition, Stamford Arts Centre hosted the annual Stamford Poet Laureate Competition 
via a Zoom link at the end of April. (27 attendees).

1.8 A series of online Cinema Speaks events began on the 20 May. These offer fortnightly 
sessions on Wednesday evenings at 8pm to an invited group of film enthusiasts, including 
discussions around a chosen film. Participants watch the film online before joining the 
zoom call. Previous meetings have included Portrait of a Lady on Fire, 6 May (9 
participants) and The Truth, 20 May (11 participants). 

1.9 The featured film for 3 June was The Assistant. Patrons wishing to join are invited to email 
boxoffice@stamfordartscentre.com to be added to the waiting list. Places are limited in 
order to ensure the best quality experience.

1.10 A Pint of Poetry evening, via Zoom, was held on 27 May. The evening welcomed poets 
from across the UK, sharing their work with local poets. (33 attendees). 

1.11 A further programme of digital events is under construction for delivery during June and 
July. Appendix 2 highlights the work currently in development. 

1.12 The project team is also coordinating with local artists to promote an ongoing series of 
digital activity through the arts centres’ websites. 

1.13 A possible open-air event at Stamford’s ‘Poetry Stone’ in June is to be confirmed. The 
content would be filmed and shared post event.

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 There was no formal consultation for this initiative. However, the team’s significant 

network of local artists was approached for their input and support.

2.2 The feedback from contributors and patrons has been excellent, with high satisfaction and 
levels of engagement.

2.3 The pilot e-Newsletter achieved an open rate of 44%. Only 18 unsubscribes. It had 590 
link clicks.

16



3 Available Options Considered
3.1 To only update the venue websites and continue to issue social media posts.

3.2 To extend this contact through the introduction of more interactive engagement through 
the venue websites and the introduction of the e-Newsletter.   

4 Preferred Option
4.1 Extending contact through the introduction of more interactive engagement within the 

venue websites and the introduction of the e-Newsletter was considered the most 
proactive option during this period.

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
5.1 Taking this opportunity to create a wider digital offer will support engaging with new 

audiences and encourage them to explore new creative disciplines beyond the current 
restrictions.

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
6.1 To consider the advice offered by Members and continue to review and develop the work 

as the lockdown is eased and priorities change.

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 None. The commissioned programme is being funded through Arts Council England.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance

8 Legal and Governance Implications 
8.1 The e-Newsletter complies with all necessary GDPR requirements.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
9.1 Use of the meeting software requires careful management and planning. Attendees are 

required to sign-up to the event in advance and specifically invited through an emailed link 
and password.

9.2 As a digital initiative, users do require access to electronic devices and to the internet.

9.3 Content is monitored to provide interest to the broadest demographic and relates to the 
general regular programme offered by both venues.    

10 Risk and Mitigation
10.1 A limited number of early recipients unsubscribed and therefore will not be on the 

database until they make future bookings. It will be important to ensure that regular arts 
centre patrons continue to engage with the initiative and accept future posts. Keeping the 
posts short, relevant and interesting will support these efforts.

11 Community Safety Implications 
11.1 None

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 
Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’?

17



12.1 The initiative supports reducing carbon emissions.

13 Other Implications (where significant) 
13.1 None

14 Background Papers
14.1 For reference, link to Issue #3 of the Arts. at home e-Newsletter. 

https://r1.dmtrk.net/3V4D-14STN-
4/sv.aspx?fbclid=IwAR0TL4itVCLnS0eD45oNlYPK1ovnOFDE9_jWNwfFp3Fqu6MXT3-
d37GaNQE

15 Appendices
15.1 Appendix 1 – Outline programme for commissioned work.

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not applicable

Not Previously Considered Not applicable

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  16 June 2020

18

https://r1.dmtrk.net/3V4D-14STN-4/sv.aspx?fbclid=IwAR0TL4itVCLnS0eD45oNlYPK1ovnOFDE9_jWNwfFp3Fqu6MXT3-d37GaNQE
https://r1.dmtrk.net/3V4D-14STN-4/sv.aspx?fbclid=IwAR0TL4itVCLnS0eD45oNlYPK1ovnOFDE9_jWNwfFp3Fqu6MXT3-d37GaNQE
https://r1.dmtrk.net/3V4D-14STN-4/sv.aspx?fbclid=IwAR0TL4itVCLnS0eD45oNlYPK1ovnOFDE9_jWNwfFp3Fqu6MXT3-d37GaNQE


Stamford Arts Centre and Guildhall Arts Centre                

 

Activities in planning for Cultural Services Online Programme Project for June/July 2020 

All dates and times are subject to change. 

 

June 10 e-Newsletter 

June 11 Art class Karen Neale- 11am Thursday. Zoom, hosted by SAC. 
 

June 12 Jazz in Cellar Bar – one hour gig 8pm Friday. Facebook live, SAC host ‘watch 
party’. 
 

June 13 Walkers Poetry event, requested poems - Saturday morning at Poetry Stone. 

June 15 Mini Mondays - interactive online storytelling with Kirsty from Rhubarb 

Theatre.   

June 17 Cinema Speak – Wednesday. 

June 17 Online Poetry swaps - live stream Zoom invited poets. 

June 18 Art class Karen Neale - 11am Thursday. 

June 18 - June 19 ‘Almost Live’ from the Cellar Bar. An hour-long concert featuring 
contributions from our all SAC’s regulars; jazz band, regular comedy acts; 
music and poetry. 

June 24 e-Newsletter 

June 24 Pint of Poetry - picnic at Poetry Stone - 8pm Wednesday. 

June 25 Art class Karen Neale - 11am Thursday. 

June 25 Commissioned theatre piece – LGBT issues in lockdown conversation. 

June 29 Mini Mondays 

  

July  

July 1 Cinema Speak – Wednesday. 

July 8 e-Newsletter 

July 10 Jazz in the Cellar Bar - facebook ‘watch party’. 

July 11 Pint of Poetry in Helpston/outside event tbc. 

July 13 Mini Mondays 

July 18 Walkers poetry event - poetry stone/online am. 

Mid-end July Commissioned theatre piece. Mrs Siddon’s in Lockdown and Isaac Newton 
piece. Both in pre-production. 

July 27 Mini Mondays 

July 29 Pint of Poetry online/outside.  

 

Appendix 1

19



This page is intentionally left blank



Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2020/21

Work Programme

Items Activities and Timetable Meeting 
location

Markets Update
Verbal update on activities taking place since the last meeting, and work to 
sustain the markets during the Covid-19 pandemic. Committee to feedback 
comments and suggestions for supporting the markets.

Covid-19 response and digital 
engagement

Report dealing with digital engagement and ongoing arts activities, following the 
closure of all arts facilities and venues during the Covid-19 pandemic. Committee 
to feed back comments and suggestions to support ongoing engagement, and to 
consider what options can be continued post-pandemic to make the arts more 
accessible

Work Programme 2020/21 Discussion item to consider what the Committee would like to consider during the 
2020/21 municipal year

16 June 
2020
(10:00am)

Virtual 

8 
September 
2020
(7:00pm)

TBC

3 November 
2020
(7:00pm)

TBC

5 January 
2021
(7:00pm)

TBC

2 March 
2021
(7:00pm)

TBC

21

A
genda Item

 8



Unscheduled items

Visitor Economy Strategy A report considering the development of a Visitor Economy Strategy TBC

REMIT

The remit of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet Members to assist with 
the development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to:

 Arts
 Heritage
 Markets and Fairs
 Sports
 Visitor Economy

Membership 722



CABINET FORWARD PLAN
 Notice of decisions to be made by Cabinet 

1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021

The Forward Plan

The Cabinet Forward Plan is a rolling, 12-month plan that will be updated on a regular basis. It includes those matters that are 
scheduled to be considered by Cabinet during the plan period. This plan also includes details of those decisions that are due to be 
made by the full Council.

The Cabinet

South Kesteven District Council’s Cabinet has seven Members, each of whom has their own remit. The remit for each Cabinet 
Member is set out in the table below.

Cabinet Member Remit
Councillor Kelham Cooke Leader and Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and Transformation 
Councillor Barry Dobson Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Growth and Leisure
Councillor Robert Reid Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy
Councillor Adam Stokes Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations
Councillor Annie Mason Cabinet Member for Communities

23



Overview and Scrutiny

The Forward Plan will be circulated to all Overview and Scrutiny Committees and be considered at each meeting as Members set 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programmes. Scrutiny members will be able to pick from the Forward Plan, those items 
relevant to their remit that they wish to scrutinise.

Decisions Cabinet may make

Cabinet Members may make decisions as “the Cabinet” in public meetings in line with the Leaders Scheme of Delegation. 
Individual Cabinet Members may also make decisions that are relevant to their own remits

At its meetings, the Cabinet may make key decisions and non-key decisions. It may also make recommendations to Council on 
matters relating to the Council’s budget or its policy framework.

Key and Non-Key Decisions

A key decision is a Cabinet decision that is likely:

1. To result in the District Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard 
to the District Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or

2. To be significant in terms of its effects on communities that live or work in an area comprising two or more wards.

A non-key decision is one that is not a key decision.

Access to documents

Documents related to decisions made by Cabinet and individual Cabinet Members can be accessed from the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk by following the links in the ‘Your Council and Democracy’ section. Information will be made publicly 
available approximately one week before a decision is due to be made so long as it does not relate to information that is exempt 
under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). You will also be able to view papers related to any Cabinet 
or Cabinet Member decision by coming to the Council’s main offices: Council Offices, St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham, Lincolnshire, 
NG31 6PZ or e-mailing democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk

24

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


Summary Decision Maker / Date Action Contact
Asset Management Strategy - Key Decision
To consider the draft Asset 
Management Strategy

Cabinet
7 July 2020

To adopt an Asset 
Management Strategy

The Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services and 
Transformation (Councillor Kelham 
Cooke)

Assistant Director, Growth
Tel: 01476 40 6177
jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk

COVID19 - Budget and Performance - Key Decision
To consider the budget and 
performance in relation to the 
COVID19 pandemic

Cabinet
7 July 2020

To take any necessary action The Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services and 
Transformation (Councillor Kelham 
Cooke)

Chief Executive 
Tel: 01476 40 60 80 
karen.bradford@southkesteven.gov.uk

Future High Streets Fund - 
To consider the final bid for Future 
High Streets Funding

Council
16 July 2020

To approve the final bid for 
future high streets funding 
and make recommendations 
to council regarding any 
budgetary requirements

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member 
for Growth and Leisure (Councillor 
Barry Dobson)

Strategic Director Growth
Tel: 01476 40 63 75
p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk

25



Summary Decision Maker / Date Action Contact
Strategic Regeneration Acquisitions - Key Decision

To make strategic regeneration 
acquisitions

Cabinet
July 2020

Information relating to this decision is exempt under paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended 
because it contains information which relates to the financial or 
business affairs of an individual or organisation

The Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services and 
Transformation (Councillor Kelham 
Cooke)

Strategic Director Growth
Tel: 01476 40 63 75
p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk

South Kesteven District Council’s Best Practice Policy and Protocol on Debt Collection - Key Decision
To consider the recommendations 
from the Rural and Communities OSC

Cabinet
8 September 2020

To adopt the new policy and 
protocol

Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources (Councillor Adam Stokes)

Head of Customer Experience
Tel: 01476 40 65 06
n.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk

Design Guide SPD - approval of consultation draft - Key Decision
The document will provide guidance 
to applicants and decision makers in 
order to improve the design quality of 
new development proposals as a 
supplement to the Local Plan policies. 

Cabinet
8 September 2020

To approve the SPD for 
consultation

Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning (Councillor Robert Reid)

Head of Planning Policy
Tel: 01476 40 64 38
r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk

Proposed Development brief for Land at Stamford North - Key Decision
To consider the proposed 
development brief for land at 
Stamford North prior to consultation

Cabinet
8 September 2020

Council
17 September 2020

To approve the draft 
Supplementary Planning 
Document in respect of land 
at Stamford North for 
consultation

Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning (Councillor Robert Reid)

Head of Planning Policy
Tel: 01476 40 64 38
r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk

26



Summary Decision Maker / Date Action Contact
Cultural Strategy - Key Decision
To consider the draft Cultural 
Strategy for South Kesteven

Cabinet
8 September 2020

To adopt a Cultural Strategy 
for South Kesteven

Cabinet Member for Culture and 
Visitor Economy (Councillor 
Rosemary Trollope-Bellew)

Head of Arts
Tel: 01476 40 61 29
michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk

Leisure Centre Proposals - Key Decision
To consider the Procurement Strategy 
and Investment Proposals for the 
Leisure facilities within the District

Cabinet
8 September 2020

To agree the approach to 
delivering the programme to 
enhance leisure opportunities 
for everyone

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member 
for Growth and Leisure (Councillor 
Barry Dobson)

Strategic Director Growth
Tel: 01476 40 63 75
p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk

Rectory Farm - Supplementary Planning Document - Key Decision
To consider the Rectory Farm 
Supplementary Planning Document 
following consultation on a draft 
document

Cabinet
8 September 2020

Council
17 September 2020

To approve a Supplementary 
Planning Document in respect 
to Rectory Farm

Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning (Councillor Robert Reid)

Special Projects Manager
Tel: 01476  40 61 64
p.moore@southkesteven.gov.uk

Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document - Final - Key Decision
To consider the Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Document 
following public consultation

Cabinet
September 2020

To approve the Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning 
Document

Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning (Councillor Robert Reid)

Head of Planning Policy
Tel: 01476 40 64 38
r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk

27



Summary Decision Maker / Date Action Contact
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy - Key Decision
To consider any proposed changes 
following consultation

Cabinet
8 September 2020

To approve the policy Cabinet Member for Commercial and 
Operations (Councillor Dr Peter 
Moseley)

Head of Environmental
Tel: 01476 40 63 19
a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk

South Kesteven District Council Corporate Plan - PFP
To consider a new Corporate Plan for 
South Kesteven District Council

Cabinet
8 September 2020

Council
17 September 2020

To make recommendation to 
Council

The Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services and 
Transformation (Councillor Kelham 
Cooke)

Chief Executive
Tel: 01476 40 60 80 
karen.bradford@southkesteven.gov.uk

Amended 2020/21 Budget – Recommendation to Council 
To consider an amended 2020/21 
budget

Cabinet
8 September 2020

Council
17 September 2020

To recommend any 
amendments to Council

Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources (Councillor Adam Stokes)

Interim Director of Finance, Section 
151 Officer
Tel: 01476 40 63 75
r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

28



Summary Decision Maker / Date Action Contact
St Peter's Hill, Grantham - public realm improvements - Key Decision
To consider a report on St. Peter's 
Hill, Grantham - public realm 
improvements

Cabinet
September 2020

To approve the proposals 
and budget

The Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services and 
Transformation (Councillor Kelham 
Cooke)

Strategic Director Commercial and 
Operations
Tel: 01476 40 63 44
gary.smith@southkesteven.gov.uk

Allocation policy 2021 to include Choice Based Lettings - Key Decision
To consider the policy and 
recommendations from the Rural and 
Communities OSC

Cabinet
1 December 2020

To adopt a refreshed 
Housing Allocation Policy 
incorporating a Choice 
based Lettings Scheme

Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning (Councillor Robert Reid)

Assistant Director of Housing
Tel: 01476 40 62 99
harry.rai@southkesteven.gov.uk

Housing Asset Management Strategy 2021-2026 - Key Decision
To consider the strategy Cabinet

1 December 2020
To adopt a Housing Asset 
management Strategy

Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning (Councillor Robert Reid)

Assistant Director of Housing
Tel: 01476 40 62 99
harry.rai@southkesteven.gov.uk

Council Tax Base 2021/22 - Key Decision
To determine the Council Tax base to 
form the basis of the 2021/22 budget 
proposals to be recommended to 
Council

Cabinet
1 December 2020

To agree the Council Tax 
base 2021/22 which will form 
the basis of the budget 
proposals for the year

Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources (Councillor Adam Stokes)

Interim Director of Finance, Section 
151 Officer
Tel: 01476 40 63 75
r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

29



Summary Decision Maker / Date Action Contact
Draft Budget Proposals 2021/22 - Key Decision
To consider the draft budget 
proposals for 2021/22.

Cabinet
1 December 2020

To agree the draft budget 
proposals for 2021/22 for 
consultation

Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources (Councillor Adam Stokes)

Interim Director of Finance, Section 
151 Officer
Tel: 01476 40 63 75
r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

Budget Proposals 2021/22 - Key Decision
To agree the budget proposals for 
2021/22.

Cabinet
19 January 2021

Council
1 March 2021

To recommend the budget for 
2021/22 to Council

Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources (Councillor Adam Stokes)

Interim Director of Finance, Section 
151 Officer
Tel: 01476 40 63 75
r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

Pay Policy Statement – Legislative 
To receive recommendations from the 
Employment Committee on the 
Council’s Pay Policy Statement 
2021/22

Council
March 2021

The Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services and 
Transformation (Councillor Kelham 
Cooke)

Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisational 
Development and Change
Tel: 01476 40 61 32
e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk

30



Summary Decision Maker / Date Action Contact
Customer Service Consultation Results - Key Decision
To consider consultation in respect of 
customer services

Cabinet

Please note that currently 
the decision date has been 
suspended.  A new date 
will be calculated after the 
COVID19 situation

To make any decisions on 
the basis of the feedback 
from the customer service 
consultation

The Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services and 
Transformation (Councillor Kelham 
Cooke)

Head of Customer Experience
Tel: 01476 40 65 06
n.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk

31



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Action Notes from the meeting held on 11 February 2020
	5 Updates from the previous meeting
	7 Digital Engagement in Response to Covid-19
	Appendix 1 -June-July online events Arts SK

	8 2020/21 Committee Work Programme
	Draft Cabinet Forward Plan - 1 July onwards


